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☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk Signature Nicole Klaman 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to membership of board of chiropractic examiners and to provide for application. 
 

Minutes:                                                 7 

 
Representative Thomas Beadle, District 27 Fargo:  Introduced HB 1279, see attachment 
1.  
This bill would adjust the nomination structure for the Board of Chiropractic Examiners so 
that one specific association isn’t solely responsible for putting the members forward to the 
Governor for deliberation. Also, it would open it up so that any licensed member may be 
appointed by the Governor. 
(0:07:27) 
 
Chairman Weisz:    Questions from Committee?  Seeing none, is there further support? 
 
(0:07:44-0:10:40) 
Dr. Steve Nagel, Doctor of Chiropractic, BSN, owner of 180 Chiropractic and 180 Weight 
Loss: Provided supporting testimony, see attachment 2. 
 
Representative Karen Rohr:    What is the percentage of Chiropractors that are not 
members of North Dakota Chiropractic Association (NDCA)? 
 
Dr. Steve Nagel:  I will defer that question to my colleague Dr. Becky Perry-Domres 
 
Chairman Weisz: Further questions?  Further support?   
 
(0:11:29-0:15:25) 
Dr. Becky Perry-Domres, DC, Citizen of Minot, Owner of Premier Chiropractic, NDCA 
Member: In support, see attachment 3. 
 
Dr. Jake Schmitz, citizen and chiropractor in Fargo:   Not present for verbal testimony, 
written received-see attachment 4 
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Chairman Weisz: Questions? Seeing none, Thank you.  Further support? Seeing none, 
opposition? 
 
 

Opposition: 
 
(0:15:57-0:18:53) 
Dr. Eric Seamands, Chiropractor in Bismarck, SW District Director for the NDCA:  Opposed, 
see attachment 5. 
 
Representative Todd Porter: Are you on the board? 
 
Dr. Eric Seamands:  NDCA? 
 
Rep. Porter: No board of examiners? 
 
Dr. Eric Seamands: No sir. 
 
Rep. Porter:     I’m looking through the list of people on the board and I am not seeing a 
public member.  Is it just the 5 members appointed by the governor and they are all 
practitioners?  
 
Dr. Eric Seamands: That is correct, 5 licensed chiropractors on the board. 
 
(0:19:45) 
Representative Kathy Skroch:   Reading through your testimony, you describe how 
vacancies are filled with the North Dakota Chiropractic Examiner’s Board (NDSBCE).  Is 
there an avenue for a nonmember to serve on the ND Chiropractic Board of Examiners?  If 
so, please describe. 
 
Dr. Eric Seamands: Yes, there is an avenue.  See attachment 5, Paragraph 4, line 1-8 is 
the process.  However, a public meeting will be held for chiropractors licensed in the state 
just prior to the Examiner’s Business meeting.  Our admin assistant sends letters and calls 
those who’s telephone numbers are registered with the Board of Examiners. 
 
Rep. Skroch: Are you aware of any nonmembers who have served or who are 
currently serving? 
 
Dr. Eric Seamands: I am not aware of any but someone in the lineup may. 
 
Vice Chair Karen Rohr: You are not a member of the examiners board, but, have you ever 
received a survey from the medical examiner’s in terms of any needs or suggestions those 
who are nonmembers, 40-50%, would like addressed?  
 
Dr. Eric Seamands:  I don’t believe so, as their job is to protect the public.  I do not see them 
reaching out to nonmember chiropractors regarding their needs to protect the public.  
 
Chairman Weisz: Further questions?  Seeing none.  Further opposition? 
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(0:22:48-0:26:43) 
Representative Alisa Mitskog, Chiropractor from Wahpeton:  Opposed, written testimony 
not provided. Chiropractors take the Board of Examiner’s Election very seriously it’s been a 
high priority to maintain our profession’s integrity. A group of peer’s is going to uphold the 
profession’s integrity and keep the profession safe.  Due to this, I believe a group of peers is 
the best suited to select candidates, this will allow for transparency and allow opportunity for 
all to apply.  How would the governor know who is best to serve the board?   
2 concerns for me regarding this bill is 1. There aren’t any term limits.  I think longer than 2 
terms you aren’t serving the profession.  2. Equal representation across the state. 
 
Representative Bill Tveit:  Currently the board members are selected from regions? 
 
Rep. Mitskog: yes 
 
Rep. Tveit:  Under current practice, is there anything to prohibit someone for submitting 
directly to the governor. 
 
Rep. Mitskog:  I believe the testimony from the board will help with that question.  But what 
I do know is annually there is an opportunity for anyone to apply for an open seat.  
 
Rep. Tveit: So currently that applicant would still have to come through the association to 
receive that nomination? 
 
Rep. Mitskog: I would defer this question to the board. 
 
Chairman Weisz: Further questions?  Seeing none, thank you.  Further opposition? 
 
 Dr. Eric Froehling, member of NDSBCE: Opposed, see attachment 6. 
 
Representative Matthew Ruby:  Could the Board of Examiner’s add term limits?  I just don’t 
see why they would be reliant on an organization if they can do it on their own accord. 
 
Dr. Eric Froehling:  I believe we could if it were supported in Century Code. 
 
Representative Todd Porter:    There are 2 opposing organization and their memberships 
are about even, at 50/50.  Why can’t we split the nominations just the same? For election, 
Organization 1 gets 2 nominations and Organization 2 gets 2 nominations. 
 
Dr. Eric Froehling:  To be clear, I’m on the Board of Chiropractic Examiners, appointed by 
the governor and there are 5 of us on that board.  The Trade Association is a ND Chiropractic 
association that you would pay dues if licensed in ND. “The other group, I didn’t know they 
existed since yesterday. So the 50/50 split wouldn’t work because there are more than 2 
groups. 
 
Rep. Porter: I’m not caring so much about associations as I am about the process.   From 
the Boards standpoint, how a name gets submitted to the governor.  If you have half of the 
chiropractors through an association, per that process, should they get more than half of the 
letters of nomination or should the governor also have the ability to get names from another 
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association or trade group.  At one point in time, this one association was probably the only 
association. And the only association when this law was written.  Now things have changed 
with additional groups or associations.  Should they not get an equal opportunity to nominate 
inside of those positions using their process? 
 
Dr. Eric Froehling: From a Board of examiner’s perspective, if you meet 46-03-03 
requirements you may submit your name through the current process.  An open to public 
meeting is held before the NDCA meeting.  Any license holder can show up and get 
nominated, so it is equal in that case. 
 
Rep. M. Ruby: In the open to public NDCA meeting, or the meeting when the applications 
are submitted.  Does anybody get to vote in that meeting or just the NDCA members? 
 
Dr. Eric Froehling:  No, that is a Public meeting held prior to the NDCA meeting, so it’s open 
to everyone.  
 
Rep. Tveit:   Anybody can submit their name in the open meeting.  Then the names that go 
to the governor come out of the association meeting, correct? 
 
Rep. Tveit:    The open meeting is opened to public. During the meeting they vote on the 
submittals and the 3 names are then given to the governor. It’s my understanding anyone 
can vote. 
 
Rep. Skroch: Are you aware of anyone serving on the state board of examiners who 
is not a member of the NDCA? 
 
Dr. Eric Froehling: I am not aware of the affiliations of all serving board, past and current.  
 
Rep. Schneider: Can you describe the process prior to the voting?  Are there 
nominations, speeches, resume sharing? 
 
Dr. Eric Froehling: Public meeting where someone could nominate themselves or by a peer.  
A vote takes place and 3 are selected to go to the governor. 
 
Rep. Schneider: There’s been some conversation about other organizations and if 
license holders aren’t members of one they must be of another.  How many other 
organizations and their enrollment? 
 
Dr. Eric Froehling: I do not know numbers of other organizations, NDCA has been around 
for a number of years. 
 
Representative Greg Westlind: How many nonmembers show up for the public meeting?  
If so, how many recommendations do they make? 
 
Dr. Eric Froehling:   In the meetings I’ve been to, very few. 
 
Representative Dwight Kiefert: If this passes, would the person need to be a chiropractor 
to be on the board? 
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Dr. Eric Froehling: Yes, per Century Code 43-06-03.  
 
Chairman Weisz: Further questions?  Further Opposition? 
 
Chairman Weisz: closes hearing 
 
 
 
 
Testimony received outside hearing 
 
Support: 
 
George B Curry, DC, FICA, President of International Chiropractors Association (ICA): In 
support, see attachment 7. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to membership of the board of chiropractic examiners; and to provide for application 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Weisz: opened meeting 
 
Representative Todd Porter:    I’d like to introduce my guest for the day, Carson Masseth 
who is a freshman at Mandan High School. 
 
Chairman Weisz: I visited with Rep. Alisa Mitskog this morning and she said she was fine 
with the Amendments that were provided by the Chiropractic Association, she was opposed 
to the bill.   It adds 2 more members, a citizen member and a chiropractic assistant.  In 
addition it outlines the qualifications and rules associated with these members. 
 
Vice Chair Rohr:    I move to adopt the amendments. 
 
Representative Kathy Skroch: Second. 
 
Vice Chair Rohr:   Who brought the amendments forward? 
 
Chairman Weisz: The Chiropractic Association.  The amendment keeps the intent of the 
original bill which was that the votes had to be through the association.  But it does put the 
requirements in like, who can serve on the board, how long of term, etc.  That was eliminated 
by the original bill 1279. 
 
Representative Dick Anderson: I received a lot of calls and they kind of have 2 groups that 
are fighting amongst themselves, State Vs. Chiropractors.   
 
Chairman Weisz: Boards tend to have conflicts.  It does appear the association was willing 
to concede the point of allowing them to be directly nominated to the governor.  But they want 
to make sure the same requirements and restrictions are in place.  Plus, I recall Rep. Porter’s 
question having to do with citizen member and they decided it was important, so that was 
added.  They also added another for a total of 7 members. 
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Voice Vote: Motion to adopt amendment carries 
 
Representative Matthew Ruby:  Looking at the amendment, “No member shall serve more 
than 2 consecutive terms. In theory, you can do 2 years take a break and go back again. 
 
Chairman Weisz: That is the current restriction they have. 
 
Rep.  Anderson: I think down the road they are possibly going to switch it to three 3 year 
terms.  
 
Rep. Porter: I move a Do pass as amended. 
 
Rep. Anderson: Second 
 
 
Roll Call Vote: Yes  12 No  0  Absent 2 
Motion Carries; Do Pass As Amended 
 
Rep. Anderson: Carrier  
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Adopted by the Human Services Committee 

February 5, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1279 

Page 1, line 1, replace "section" with "sections 43-06-03 and" 

Page 1, after line 3, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 43-06-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

43-06-03. State board of chiropractic examiners - Members - Appointment -
Qualifications. 

i The state board of chiropractic examiners shall consist of fii,econsists of 
seven members appointed by the governor. The members are: 

� Five doctors of chiropractic: 

Q,. One certified chiropractic clinical assistant: and 

c. One consumer member. 

2. Each persondoctor of chiropractic appointed must: 

4-:- a. Have a license to practice chiropractic in North Dakota. 

2-:- b. Have been a resident of this state and have practiced chiropractic in 
this state for at least five consecutive years immediately before 
appointment to the board. 

3-:- c. Remain a resident of this state and continue in active practice in this 
state during the term of office. 

d. Be a licensee in good standing and must not be the subject of a 
pending investigation by the board for violations under this chapter. 

3. Each certified chiropractic clinical assistant appointed must: 

a. Be certified as a chiropractic clinical assistant and meet the 
requirements of section 43-06-16.1. 

b. Be actively engaged in the practice of a certified chiropractic clinical 
assistant in the state for at least five years immediately preceding 
appointment to the board. 

4. Each consumer member appointed: 

a. Must be a resident of the state for at least five years immediately 
preceding appointment to the board. 

b. May not have personal or familial financial relationships to the 
chiropractic profession. 

Page No. 1 19.0784.01001 

/ord 



May not be, and may not be a spouse of, a doctor of chiropractic, 
certified chiropractic clinical assistant, or licensed health care 
professional. 

5. An individual appointed to the board as a certified chiropractic clinical 
assistant may not participate in any activities related to the clinical 
examination of chiropractic licensure applicants. 

6. An individual appointed to the board as a consumer may not participate in 
any activities related to the clinical examination of chiropractic or certified 
chiropractic clinical assistant licensure applicants." 

Page 1, after line 6 insert 

"L." 

Page 1, line 9, overstrike "one term" 

Page 1, line 10, overstrike "and" 

Page 1, line 10, after the second "one" insert "term" 

Page 1, line 10, overstrike "each" and insert immediately thereafter "any" 

Page 1, line 10, after "year" insert: "except: 

a. Every fifth year, the governor shall appoint a doctor of chiropractic and 
a certified chiropractic clinical assistant to the board. 

b. Two years after the appointments in subdivision a, the governor shall 
appoint a doctor of chiropractic and a consumer member to the board 

2. A member may not serve for more than two consecutive five-year terms. 

3. If a member of the board is absent from two consecutive regular meetings, 
the board may declare a vacancy." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_23_017 
Carrier: D. Anderson 

Insert LC: 19.0784.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1279: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1279 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1 . replace "section" with "sections 43-06-03 and" 

Page 1, after line 3, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 43-06-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

43-06-03. State board of chiropractic examiners - Members 
Appointment - Qualifications . 

.L The state board of chiropractic examiners shall consist of fiveconsists of 
seven members appointed by the governor. The members are: 

a. Five doctors of chiropractic: 

� One certified chiropractic clinical assistant: and 

� One consumer member. 

£. Each f**S0Rdoctor of chiropractic appointed must: 

4-:- a. Have a license to practice chiropractic in North Dakota. 

� � Have been a resident of this state and have practiced chiropractic in 
this state for at least five consecutive years immediately before 
appointment to the board. 

&.- � Remain a resident of this state and continue in active practice in this 
state during the term of office. 

� Be a licensee in good standing and must not be the subject of a 
pending investigation by the board for violations under this chapter. 

-1_ Each certified chiropractic clinical assistant appointed must: 

a. Be certified as a chiropractic clinical assistant and meet the 
requirements of section 43-06-16.1. 

� Be actively engaged in the practice of a certified chiropractic clinical 
assistant in the state for at least five years immediately preceding 
appointment to the board. 

4. Each consumer member appointed: 

a. Must be a resident of the state for at least five years immediately 
preceding appointment to the board. 

� May not have personal or familial financial relationships to the 
chiropractic profession. 

� May not be. and may not be a spouse of, a doctor of chiropractic, 
certified chiropractic clinical assistant, or licensed health care 
professional. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_23_017 
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Insert LC: 19.0784.01001 Title: 02000 

§.,_ An individual appointed to the board as a certified chiropractic clinical 
assistant may not participate in any activities related to the clinical 
examination of chiropractic licensure applicants. 

2" An individual appointed to the board as a consumer may not participate 
in any activities related to the clinical examination of chiropractic or 
certified chiropractic clinical assistant licensure applicants." 

Page 1, after line 6 insert 

"L" 

Page 1, line 9, overstrike "one term" 

Page 1, line 10, overstrike "and" 

Page 1, line 10, after the second "one" insert "term" 

Page 1, line 10, overstrike "each" and insert immediately thereafter "any" 

Page 1, line 10, after "year" insert: "except: 

� Every fifth year, the governor shall appoint a doctor of chiropractic 
and a certified chiropractic clinical assistant to the board. 

� Two years after the appointments in subdivision a, the governor shall 
appoint a doctor of chiropractic and a consumer member to the 
board 

.£. A member may not serve for more than two consecutive five-year terms. 

� If a member of the board is absent from two consecutive regular 
meetings, the board may declare a vacancy." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to membership of the board of chiropractic examiners; and to provide for application. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments #1-4 

 
Madam Chair Lee opens the hearing on HB 1279. 
 
(00:19-03:23) Representative Thomas Beadle, District 27 introduces HB 1279 and 
provides testimony. Please see Attachment #1 for written testimony.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: You will be happy to know that there is an occupational licensing board 
bill in front of your Government and Veterans Affairs Committee that Representative Casper’s 
committee heard last week that is going to, I hope, clarify and make some consistency in 
things such as permitting the governor to remove people.  
 
Representative Beadle: That would help alleviate the concerns 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Right now the Governor has the right to appoint but no right to remove. 
I just urge you to stay tuned in for the occupational licensing bill in place.  
 
Representative Beadle: That might clarify the concerns that I had with the language that 
was added in in terms of the issue being that somebody who has an investigation is not 
allowed to serve on the board. That might be able to help alleviate those concerns.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Representative Casper would be happy to hear any comments that you 
might have relating to that as well.  
 
Representative Beadle: I was unaware that bill was in his committee. As I mentioned this 
bill went through the house human services committee before it came over here so those 
committee members were unaware of those bills progressing as well. I will certainly weigh in 
there.  
 
(05:30-12:53) Dr. Jake Schmitz, Licensed Chiropractor in North Dakota. Testifying in 
support of HB 1279. Please see Attachment #2 for written testimony.  
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(11:55) Senator Anderson: In all these boards the governor makes a couple of hundred 
appointments a year and we have to have some confidence in the Governor’s office that they 
are going to seek some diversity geographical or whatever. In my experience they almost 
always try to do that it’s not always possible but the Governor does a pretty good job at that.  
 
Jake Schmitz: I completely agree; my concern was if we don’t have that language in there 
then it is not a concern. If the language is in there now that becomes a problem. Instead of 
adding more to it, we can keep it what it is and the Governor will choose the best qualified 
candidate in my opinion. Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to speak I appreciate it 
and I would answer any additional questions if there are any. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Any questions for Dr. Schmitz? If not, thank you.  
 
(14:00-15:40) Lisa Blanchard, Executive Director of the North Dakota Board of 
Chiropractic Examiners. Testifying in support of HB 1279. Please see Attachment #3 for 
written testimony.  
 
Senator Hogan: I don’t know that much about chiropractors, how many are there, what is 
the distribution, how many are members of the association? Tell me a little background 
information on chiropractors.   
 
Lisa Blanchard: As of yesterday there are 440 active license holders and 54 inactive license 
holders which means they do not practice in the state. There are currently 100 certified 
chiropractic clinical assistants.  
 
Senator Hogan: What is the geographical distribution? Did you plan your districts on 
geographical distributions? 
 
Lisa Blanchard: Yes and no, it is part of the current structure that the North Dakota 
Chiropractic Association had, that’s where this list comes from but I can give you numbers.  
Group 1 of the amendment has 133 active members, group 2 has 46, group 3 has 75, group 
4 has 133, group 5 has 31. That is just active that does not count the inactive.  
 
Senator Hogan: Those are licensed chiropractors not members of an association? 
 
Lisa Blanchard: Correct, I do not have the association numbers but there is representation 
from them here and they will be able to answer that question for you.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We have this other licensing bill that is still being worked in the house. I 
know one of the challenges for the Governor’s office was finding people who are willing to 
take the time and do the traveling and so forth. The idea of having advice to the Governor or 
recommendations to the Governor to consider geographic distribution has always been a 
part of the deal. We don’t want them all from Bismarck because that is easy. I’m a little 
troubled for it to require to be that way so that may be part of our conversation here. There 
is a big difference between having 31 in a group than 133 in a group and that isn’t really 
equal representation.  
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Lisa Blanchard: This is everybody that is licensed that doesn’t do the meeting eligibility 
requirements, I did this quickly yesterday because I thought you might ask that and I didn’t 
back it up to who would actually be eligible. I did do a rough estimate and there are slightly 
over 100 of that 440 that would not be eligible because they have not been in practice for at 
least five years. The majority of those, just a rough estimate, Fargo and Bismarck because 
that seems where the new people are landing.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: Are there any chiropractors that practice on critters? 
 
Lisa Blanchard: We do not have a registration or a certification process for animal 
chiropractic and I believe that is under the scope of practice of the veterinarian.   
 
Madam Chair Lee: What a wonderful thought.  
 
Lisa Blanchard: There is a veterinarian who specializes in it.  
 
(21:37-24:58) Kris Anderson, Licensed Chiropractor and President-Elect for the ND 
Chiropractic Association (NDCA). Testifying in support of HB 1279. Please see 
Attachment #4 for written testimony.  
 
Senator Hogan: Of the 440 active chiropractors how many of them are members of your 
association? 
 
Kris Anderson: When HB 1279 passed the floor, our membership was at 226, I don’t have 
an updated number from that.  
 
Senator Hogan: Are they representative of all the regions of the state, rural and urban? 
Representation how does it compare geographically?  
 
Kris Anderson: I don’t have that broken down, it matches the percentage of each district.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Any further questions for Mr. Anderson? If not, thank you. Further 
testimony? Opposition? Neutral? 
 
Senator O. Larsen: Can I get an explanation on what a chiropractic assistance job is? 
 
Lisa Blanchard: It’s a training process, there is an education process, national exam, and 
state certification. It has been in effect since 2017. They can do delegated duties underneath 
the chiropractor within the scope of their education whether that is removing therapeutic 
pads, and ice packs. There is the caveat that you are not required to be a certified chiropractic 
clinical assistant either if you are doing non clinical duties like answering the phone and 
greeting patients.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Is there a school? 
 
Lisa Blanchard: Everything is online based? 
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Senator O. Larsen: I was just wondering on how that rolls in on the duties like a massage 
therapist and the chiropractic assistant, where they are on the professional totem pole. They 
must be a little higher than a massage therapist?  
 
Lisa Blanchard: Under.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: You’re not really touching in a treatment way. 
 
Lisa Blanchard: Correct.  
 
Senator Hogan: In terms of the bill if a CCA needed five years of experience, that is a 
legitimate concern because you don’t have anyone that is going to have five years.  
 
Lisa Blanchard: If somebody in that first group of certificate recipients would be August 1st 
of 2022. 
 
Senator Hogan: That’s a problem. That helps to clarify that.  
 
Lisa Blanchard: Longevity could be an issue. 
 
Senator Hogan: Do we know how many CCA’s there are? 
 
Lisa Blanchard: 100 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Do you find the five years of experience, is it a challenge at all when your 
looking for chiropractors?  
 
Lisa Blanchard: No, ¾ of the chiropractors have more than five years of experience.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I’m pleased to see that you have the assistant on the board because 
dental assistants are not on the board that certifies them. I think it is appropriate for someone 
being regulated by the board, has a seat at the board. 
 
Lisa Blanchard: You told us that two years ago.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Yes, and you remembered. Part of the challenge for someone in the 
position such as that is that the income is not going to make it a lifetime career. This could 
be a question for Mr. Anderson as well, if we looked at tinkering with the five-year experience 
requirement tell me how we would best do that.  
 
Lisa Blanchard: The year requirement of certification could be reduced. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Would two seem like an unreasonable number or should it be one if you 
want to think about that.  
 
Lisa Blanchard: I don’t have good statistics because we just had our very first renewal. I 
can say that we sent out 129 renewal notices and 100 have renewed so we did have a fair 
share of drop on that.  
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Madam Chair Lee: What if we eliminated the time frame entirely? 
 
Lisa Blanchard: For the assistant? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: For either one. I’m asking I’m not telling.  
 
Lisa Blanchard: I can’t speak on that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: That other board bill that I mentioned would require training both for 
board members and directors.  
 
Lisa Blanchard: We all attended the Attorney Generals training. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: And we appreciate that. It is an important component. We have had 
board members that currently and previously served on the board who do not know what 
their responsibilities are on the board and don’t understand the separation between 
regulation and advocacy.  
 
Kris Anderson: My comment might be to consider when the CCAA law was developed, 
those individuals that had been in that role for an extended period of time were grandfathered 
past the educational requirement and were required to take the certification exam. That 
experience may serve to bridge the gap in this first appointee and beyond that we should 
have people with five years’ experience and beyond that. At least in this first appointment 
with the assistant, that experience might be considered as well.   
 
Madam Chair Lee: Those with over 2000 hours of experience? Do you have any issue with 
the five-year requirement? 
 
Kris Anderson: Perhaps five years is too steep of a requirement but at some level having 
that requirement speaks to the fact that we expect that individual to be committed to their 
role both professionally and on the board and because there is high attrition in that role, 
having no requirement at all may leave the licensing board in some difficult situations if they 
have the same type of attrition on their board with that member.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: If we had a number fewer than five would that be something that would 
be okay or not.  
 
Kris Anderson: We wouldn’t oppose that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We are talking limited training really and not actual treatment.  
 
Kris Anderson: Their role in their job is limited relative to other professions that have 
assistants. The time commitment that is necessary to fulfill this role on the licensing board is 
really the big ask here so, I think having some level of time requirement would demonstrate 
their commitment to the profession and limit the attrition in that role as well.  
 
Jake Schmitz: I happen to be the president of the other association, I really contemplated 
with my testimony last night whether I would add my thoughts to that exact question and I 
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had in there at minimum a six-month requirement and have a yearly rotation for that position 
because of the high turnover. I took it out because I didn’t want to tell you guys what to do 
but that was comfortable to me.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: How many members in your association and what is the name? 
 
Jake Schmitz: The Association of Wellness Chiropractors and we currently have I believe 
32 or 33 members spread very evenly across the state.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: How many members do you have Mr. Anderson 
 
Kris Anderson: 226 when this bill passed the floor in the house. 
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the hearing on HB 1279. 
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Madam Chair Lee opens the discussion on HB 1279. 
 
Senator K. Roers: I think six months’ experience and a two-year term for the chiropractic 
assistant, knowing that is such a high turnover role, I don’t think a one-year term on a board 
would be too much turnover.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Two years’ experience for the assistant.  
 
Senator K. Roers: You think a five-year term on a job that people stay in for two years. 
 
Senator Anderson: If somebody is no longer actively practicing, they are no longer eligible 
and then they have to replace them. The next person fills their unexpired term. I don’t think 
that term is as significant and six months is okay with me, a year might be better.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: How about one year? 
 
Senator K. Roers: I can live with that.  
 
Senator Anderson: We will go with one year and leave the term the same is that alright? 
 
Senator K. Roers: They were saying it was five years it would 2022 before anybody. When 
was the first people 2017, so there would be people already eligible. I’m good with that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The consumer member must have been a resident of the state for five 
years, are you ok with that? I’m happy with not be a spouse of a chiropractor as well. I wanted 
the Governor to be able to remove if we might look at that because it says the board may 
declare a vacancy if they are absent from two consecutive regular meetings. I would like to 
suggest that we might say that if the board recommends replacement of an inactive board 
member that the Governor would have the authority to declare the seat vacant.  
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Senator Anderson: I think you should leave that Governor replace thing to your bill and 
forget about putting it in everyone right now. One of the reasons I disagree with you about 
that is; if these 1,000 board members can be replaced by the Governor, can you imagine 
how many calls the Governor’s office is going to get because somebody is upset with some 
board member on some board and the Governor is going to have to deal with that constantly 
about somebody want this or that board member replaced and my personal opinion is that 
the Governor likes the way it is now. If the Governor really wanted to get rid of somebody, he 
would get rid of them. The boards can always remove them for non-performance and the 
Governor could suggest that. I don’t like the idea of the Governor being able to remove them 
because then everyone is going to want somebody removed just like the issue we had with 
the school board and being able to recall them every six months. It is a constant issue with 
people being upset so I disagree with that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Senator Anderson gets to sit in that same chair five days a week so we 
heard in the other committee about the school boards and you couldn’t be on it if you were a 
felon and if you had six months left on your term they couldn’t throw you out.  
 
Senator Hogan: The reason I like that is, “may” remove because it is permissive to the board 
to do. I like that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Okay, I differ. So, the only thing we have to do is ask the intern to change 
the part on the certified chiropractic clinical assistance.  
 
Senator Anderson: I’ll move that we change that required service to one year.  
Seconded by Senator Hogan 
 
Madam Chair Lee: That is really the only change then on page 2, line 2, changing the 
required service to one year. Also, attached to Lisa Blanchards testimony her amendment 
provides for an addition on page 1, line 11, and requires that each of the five appointed 
doctors of chiropractic come from different areas. No, because we don’t want the districts so 
we aren’t going to do that amendment.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN 
 
5 YEA, 0 NAY, 1 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES TO ADOPT AMENDMENT 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Alright we have the amended bill before us.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: I move a DO PASS, AS AMENDED 
Seconded by Senator Clemens 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN 
 
5 YEA, 0 NAY, 1 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES DO PASS, AS AMENDED 
Senator Anderson will carry HB 1279 to the floor.  
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Good Morning Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee. For the record, 

my name is Thomas Beadle, State Representative from District 27 in Fargo. 

HB 1279 came to me at the request of a constituent who has a prominent business in my district. What 

this bill does is adjust the nomination structure for membership to the Board of Chiropractic Examiners 

so that one specific association isn't solely responsible for putting the members forward to the Governor 

for deliberation. The adjustment made in this bill would remove the lines that place the duty for 

nomination at the feet of the North Dakota Chiropractic Association and open it up so that any licensed 

member may be appointed by the Governor. Through conversations that I have had with legislative 

council as well as some of the chiropractors in attendance today, it seems that the reason for the 

current provision about the association putting the nominations forward is due to the association 

existing before the board and license structure itself. 

For the comfort of the committee and the general public, this bill does not adjust anything currently in 

code regarding the qualifications of board members. 43-06-03 states that each member must be 

licensed for chiropractic medicine by the state of North Dakota, have been a resident of this state and 

practiced for at least 5 consecutive years before appointment, and remain a resident of the state and 

continue in active practice throughout their term in office. 

Under statute, we have plenty of different licensing and examination boards listed, and they have a 

good variety for how they are appointed. I've included an email from Legislative Council about how 

many of the professional and occupational boards are appointed. Some may say that we need to have 

the association nominate the licensed professionals for board consideration due to the medical nature 

of the profession, but as you will see from this list, other professions with medical nature to them are 

appointed absent of a specific board putting the name forward. The Board of Medicine, Board of 

Pharmacy, Board of Pediatric Medicine, Board of Massage Therapy, Board of Physical Therapy, Board of 

Dental Examiners and the State Board of Psychologist Examiners are a few examples of some of the 

licensing boards that Do Not have a specific professional association acting as a gatekeeper. 

When code is absent of how the nominations are put forward, current practice is for the Governor's 

office to announce the upcoming vacancy and solicit nominations through their Boards and 

Commissions portal on the Governor's website. Notice is also given out by the boards themselves to 

their members to make them aware. When an application is submitted, letters of recommendation are 

included and it is not uncommon for associations and prominent people to weigh in to give the 

Governor's office input . 

I believe that this change is warranted. There are more than one professional association operating in 

North Dakota made up of licensed chiropractors, but only one of them has any input into the board 



process. Clearly there is a process in place to make sure that the profession and the consumers are 
protected and that the board is capable of doing the job. This is a simple change. While the current 
board and some members may be opposed to this change, I believe their animosity is due more to the 
presence of a rival association leading this effort, and less a result of actual fears that could come to 
fruition from changing this nominating process. There are some licensees who will be testifying after me 
that can explain in more detail their reasons for the change. 

I am happy to answer any questions the committee may have. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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Per your request, we have reviewed the occupational and professional board laws and pulled together a list of 

executive occupational and professional boards and information regarding gubernatorial appointments from 

nominees put forward by professional organizations: 

NDCC Section Board Excerpt 

§ 4.1-2 6-02 Milk Marketing Board The milk marketing board consists of: 

a. A dairy farmer appointed by the governor from a list of 
two names submitted by the milk producers association 
of North Dakota; 

b. A processor appointed by the governor from a list of two 
names submitted by the North Dakota dairy industries 
association; 

C. A retailer appointed by the governor from a list of two 
names submitted by the North Dakota grocers 
association; ... 

§ 43-02.2-03 State Board of Accountancy A vacancy on the board must be filled by appointment by the 

governor from a list of at least three nominees submitted by the 

appropriate nominating committee. 

§ 43-04-04 Board of Barber Examiners Each appointment must be made from a list of five names 

submitted to the governor by the state barber association. 

§ 43-0 6-04 State Board of Chiropractic Examiners When a vacancy occurs ... the North Dakota chiropractic 

association shall nominate, ... to the governor three qualified 

persons for each vacancy. 

§ 43-19.1-03 State Board of Registration for The board members who are professional engineers must be 

Professional Engineers and Land appointed by the governor from among a list of nominees 

Surveyors submitted to the governor by the North Dakota society of 

professional engineers .... The governor shall appoint the 

professional land surveyor member of the board from a list of 

nominees submitted by the North Dakota society of professional 

land surveyors. 

§ 43-23.3-02 North Dakota Real Estate Appraiser The governor shall appoint the financial industry representative 

Qualifications and Ethics Board from a list of qualified individuals submitted by the North Dakota 

bankers associations, the credit union association of the Dakotas, 

and the North Dakota farm credit system associations. Each of 

these entities may submit two names of candidates to the 

governor. 

§ 43-39-02 North Dakota Board of Athletic The members, other than the layperson, must be appointed from 

Trainers lists submitted to the governor by the North Dakota athletic trainers 

association for those members who are athletic trainers and from 

the North Dakota medical association for the member who is a 

physician. 

§ 43-42-02 State Board of Respiratory Care Four members must be respiratory therapists, chosen from a list of 

eight respiratory therapists supplied to the governor by the North 

Dakota society for respiratory care. One member must be a 

physician chosen from a list of two physicians supplied to the 

governor by the North Dakota medical association .... One 

member must be a registered polysomnographic technologist 



chosen from a list of candidates recommended to the governor by 

the association of polysomnographic technologists. 

§ 43-48-05 North Dakota Board of Clinical The board must be composed of ... [t]he following laboratory 

Laboratory Practice persons, whose names may be included on a list of such persons 

qualified to serve submitted to the governor by the North Dakota 

society for medical technology or other interested persons, such 

list to contain at least three names for each vacancy: 

1) One administrative nonphysician clinical laboratory 
director; 

2) One clinical laboratory scientist; and 
3) One clinical laboratorv technician. 

§ 61-04.1-04 North Dakota Atmospheric Resource The governor shall initially appoint one board member for each of 

Board the seven districts from a list of three candidates given to the 

governor by weather modification authorities in each district and: 

1. When the term of office of any board member from any 
district is about to expire. 

2. When a vacancy has occurred, or is about to occur, in 
the term of office of a board member from any district for 
any reason other than expiration of term of office. 

Boards with open applications and nomination methods 

NDCC Section Board 

§ 6-01-03 State Banking Board 

§ 6-01-03 State Credit Union Board 

§ 15.1-13-02 Education Standards and Practices Board 

§ 43-01-02 Abstractors' Board of Examiners 

§ 43-03-03 State Board of Architecture and Landscape Architecture 

§ 43-05-03 North Dakota Board of Pediatric Medicine 

§ 43-09-02 State Electrical Board 

§ 43-10-02 State Board of Funeral Service 

§ 43-11-03 State Board of Cosmetology 

§ 43-12. 1-05 North Dakota Board of Nursing 

§ 43-13-03 North Dakota State Board of Optometry 

§ 43-15-03 State Board of Pharmacy 

§ 43-17-03 North Dakota Board of Medicine 

§ 43-18-02 State Board of Plumbing 

§ 43-23-01 State Real Estate Commission 

§ 43-25-05 North Dakota Board of Massage Therapy 
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§ 43-2 6.1- 02 North Dakota Board of Physical Therapy 

§ 43-28-03 State Board of Dental Examiners 

§ 43-29-02 Board of Veterinary Medical Examiners 

§ 43-30-03 Private Investigative and Security Board 

§ 43- 3 2- 02 North Dakota State Board of Psychologist Examiners 

§ 43-33-15 Board of Hearing Aid Specialists 

§ 43-34-02 North Dakota State Board of Examiners for Nursing Home Administrators 

§ 43-35-03 North Dakota Board of Water Well Contractors 

§ 43-3 6-02 State Board of Registration for Professional Soil Classifiers 

§ 43-37-05 State Board of Examiners on Audiology and Speech-Language Pathology 

§ 43-40-04 Board of Occupational Therapy Practice 

§ 43-41-08 North Dakota Board of Social Work Examiners 

§ 43-44-02 Board of Dietetic Practice 

§ 43-45-02 Board of Addiction Counseling Examiners 

§ 43-47-02 Board of Counselor Examiners 

§ 43-49-02 North Dakota Board of Reflexology 

§ 43-53-04 North Dakota Marriage and Family Therapy Licensure Board 

§ 43-57-02 State Board of Integrative Health Care 

§ 43-62-04 North Dakota Medical Imaging and Radiation Therapy Board 

Best rega rds-

Jenn 
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Dr. Steve Nagel ,  Doctor of Chiropractic, BSN, owner of 1 80 Family Chiropractic and 1 80 Weight Loss in 

Mandan, ND_ Member of Young Republ icans of North Dakota. 

120 Lake Ave, Bismarck, N D  58504 
d rsteve@180hea Ith now .com 
701-214-7846 

My name i s  Dr. Steve Nagel and I am for HB 1 279. I stand before you today representing myself as part 
of the s ilenced majority of Doctors of Chiropractic in ND. I have smal l town roots in North Dakota, 
attended the University of Mary where I obtained a 4 year bachelors of science in nursing from University 
Of Mary. After working in an ICU setting for 2 years . I left one honorable profession for another one-to 
become a Chiropractor. 

I say si lenced majority because I have chosen not to maintain my NDCA membership, as have over half 
the l icensed chiropractors in the state, as I understand. I t  wasn't always that way. When I moved back to 
North Dakota to practice, I, natural ly, was invited to join the NDCA for support, a voice, and inclusion. I 
did not realize that l would find very l ittle support for a more wel lness directed approach to Chiropractic 
and health care there _ So naturally, after what I recal l to be about a year, l decl ined future memberships. 

As I noticed pol itical changes amongst our laws and rules, I began to pay attention. 1 very soon real ized 
that the board and the NDCA often appear as one of the same. Ironically, later I found out that many of 
my colleagues also thought they were one-in-the-same entity with different wings. 

1 .  Board meetings and NDCA meetings are often in  the same location on  the same weekend. This 

has created an intertwined relationship between the state board and the NDCA. 

2 .  Election of board members is though and by the NDCA. To have a vote, you have to be a 
member of the NDCA. 

3 .  Because of  the e lection and NDCA recommendation structure, the composition of  the board i s  
al l-but guaranteed to be al l NDCA members . A l l  the rules and regulations affecting all 

chiropractors in our state are voted on by NDCA members only. This excludes the entire 
population of doctors who do not align with the NDCA. This either intentional ly or 
unintentional ly discriminates against non-members, who may choose to practice a different way. 

This effectively makes the state board entirely control led by the NDCA. 

4. On Thursday of last week, an NDCA legislative social was held after a board meeting (See 

attached email) .  This meeting was listed on the NDBCE meeting agenda as a "potential 
quorum". Interested in attending, since legislators would be there and a quorum was possible, I 
emai led the NDCA to inquire ifNON-NDCA members would be allowed to attend. You can 
read the email where it clearly states that this meeting was for NDCA members only, but that I 
could pay my dues and then would be allowed in. I was not allowed to attend, therefore I do not 
know if the board meeting occurred or what transpired during the Board meeting. What I do 
know is that I was excluded based upon my non-membership to a private association . 

5 .  https ://apps . nd.gov/sos/ndpmn/meeti ngs/searchMeeti ngs .htm 

PB · J 
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By leaving the law as it is currently written, the NDCA has a direct line to regulate the chiropractic f9 .}_ 
profession in  this  state . By adopting the proposed HB 1 279 into law, every l icensed chiropractor in ND 
get equal rights to have a voice in regulation of the profession and stop a convoluted connection between 

a private association and a governmental state board . 

Please vote yes on HB 1 279. 

I ' d  be glad to answer any questions and thanks for your time. 

� 
_,,,./ 

Dr. Steve Nagel 



From: <info@ndca.net> 
To: "Dr. Steve Nagel" <drsteve@180healthnow.com> 
Date: Thu, 17 Jan 2019 13 : 29:56 -0600 
Subject : RE: legislative social 

Hello Dr. Nagel ! 

Thanks for your inquiry about next week's NDCA legislative social. 

It is an event held for NDCA members. You may join the association online at www.ndca.net or fill out the 
attached form. 

However, our seminars are open to the public for registration. Our winter seminar is next weekend as 
well, Friday, Jan. 25 (8 : 30am-4 : 30pm) and Saturday (8am-11am). Breakfast is included on both days. 
The topic for the seminar is 10CE: Differential Diagnosis & Rehabilitation of Posture & Balance and 
Differential Diagnosis of Neuromusculoskeletal Conditions. Registration form attached or register on line 
at www.ndca.net. This class also counts towards University of Bridgeport's Orthopedic Diplomate 
Program if you would like to participate in that. 

Dr. Steve Weiniger's presentation: 
Differential Diagnosis & Rehabilitation of Posture & Balance with Motor Control Exercise 
Attendees learn to assess and rehab accurate control of posture and balance for pain control, sports 
performance and successful aging using motor control exercise. These Strong Posture® rehab 
protocols retrain posture subtleties towards symmetry for more accurate control and stabilization. It's a 
framework of short duration encounters that synergizes with spinal manipulation by systematically 
tailoring subtle exercises to each individual's unique motion patterns, engaging people as they experience 
perceptible differences, in turn boosting compliance, referrals and retention. 

Dr. James Lehman: 
The Differential Diagnosis of Neuromusculoskeletal Conditions will focus on evaluation and management 
of spinal cord injuries, statin myopathy, and chronic neuromusculoskeletal conditions. 

Sincerely, 
Chilly Goodman 
NDCA Administrative Manager 
info@ndca.net 
701.934.2682 

-----Original Message-----
From: "Dr. Steve Nagel" <drsteve@180healthnow.com> 
Sent Thursday, January 17, 2019 10:33am 
To: info@ndca.net 
Subject : legislative social 

Hi Chilly !  

Hey, I haven't  been part of  the NDCA for a while now. I was talking to a colleague and he mentioned 
going to the legislative social on the 24th

. Sounds like a cool event. I live in Bismarck anyhow, but I 'm not 
part of the NDCA. Is NDCA membership required to attend? 

Happy Thursday, 

Dr. Steve Nagel, DC, BSN 
180 Health Solutions 
2008 Twin City Dr. 
Mandan, ND 58554 
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I own P remier Chi rop ractic in  Minot. I am ma rr ied with 3 chi ldren . .  I was  appointed to a Peer Review 
Committee in 2018 by the pres ident of the state boa rd. I am a current N DCA member as  wel l  a s  a 
member of other chi rop ractic associ ations . 
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I am a member of the N DCA and I am in favor f H B  1279 .  he law as  currently stated i s  not equa l to a l l  
chi ropractors in our state. 

Less than ha l f  of chi ropractors in this state a re N DCA members . There a re 493 c h i ropractic l icense 
holders in North Dakota (see attached P res ident' s 2018 report) . Currently, the N DCA has 2 26 members . 
Some of those may be reti rees and/or those not in active p ractice ( see attached reti ree new member 
sc reenshot as wel l  as ema i l ). What this  means is the N DCA rep resents 45% of the l icense holders in 
North Dakota, meaning 55% of l i cense holders in this  state a re not rep resented with how the governing 
of our p rofess ion takes p lace. Only those with that specif ic membersh ip  have a ch ance to vote for who 
becomes nominated to the governor for a state boa rd position. 

It  a ppea rs the N DCA changed thei r by l aws to a l low an open sess ion before the i r  annua l c losed-to-the
pub l i c  meeting. The a rgument is this  wi l l  give nonmembers an opportunity to nominate themselves or 
others before voting, but thi s  does not solve the p roblem at hand because the voting happens by thei r 
members only. 

What i s  the l ikel ihood a non-member showing up before an annua l c losed assoc iat ion meeit ing i s  going 
to be given an equa l and fa i r  opportunity coming into an unfami l i a r  terr itory of an a l ready establ i shed 
group of members? What is the l ikel ihood thi s  individua l or individua l s  would be voted for and 
ult imately nominated (no matter thei r qua l if ications) when up aga inst members and/or fr iends of 
people in the assoc iation? Members running for a nomination would be 'fami l i a r  faces' to other 
members and would be at an advantage. This means a p rivate trade association has the power to make 
the selections a s  being the body voting on the nominations . The stranger wa lking in could be more 
qua l i fied, more experienced, a better leader, yet wi l l  be lucky to get any votes, espec ia l ly a majority of 
votes. I t  i s  an outs ider coming in to an estab l i shed c lub. It may work, but I can't see many people even 
attempting to do something l ike that, so what other options do they have? 1 .  Do nothing and never have 
a voice. 2 .  Join the association even if don't want to just to try to eventua l ly have a chance: . 
Profess iona l s  of any state and any p rofess ion s hould not be requi red to pay for a membersh ip  to 
become a member of a group just to cast a vote for who represents thei r p rofess ion on a state boa rd. 
There is not a voting p rocess for jobs in the rea l world. As manager of the state, the governor should be 
able to make a selection without a voting process; nom inations from an assoc iat ion as to who the 
governor gets to select from is unnecessa ry and unba lanced to a l l  chi rop ractors, patients, and cit izens in 
N D. 

Even if the majority of N D  chi ropractors were members of the N DCA, I would sti l l  feel the pass ing of 
H B1279 is necessa ry .  However, the majority of N D  chi ropractors a re not N DCA members . Therefore, 
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the re should be no opposit ion as to the pass i ng of H B  1279 .  I n  what other elect ion or s ituat ion does a· 
minor ity h ave unchallengeable control over the majo rity? 

Tha nk you. I a p p rec i ate the opportun ity to be able to speak he re today .  I 'm happy to a nswer a ny 
quest ions you might have. 

f� - 2-
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Becky Perry-Domres <hidrbecky@gmail.coi� • 3 

info@ndca.net < info@ndca.net> Tue, Jan 15 , 2019 at 1 : 37 PM 
To: Becky Perry-Dornres <h idrbecky@gmai l .com> 
Cc: Andrea Burckhard <ndca.nw.disd i r@gmai l .com> ,  Erica Jorde <ndca.nw.adisdir@gmai l .com> ,  Mike Kelly 
<ndca .sec.tres@gmai l .com> 

Hel lo Dr. Perry-Domres, 

Thanks for your inqui ry. There are currently 226 members of the state association .  This includes a l l  CURRENT 
members for 2018 be that membersh ip expi res at the end of th is month . 

We would love to have you renew your membership for 2019 !  

P lease find a renewal app l ication attached to th is emai l .  You may also renew o n  l ine at www.ndca.net. If  you have any 
questions,  p lease do not hesitate to contact me at info@ndca.net or at the N DCA phone at 701. 934 .2682 . You may 
also contact Dr. M ike Kel ly as he is in M inot too ! 

Additional ly, Dr. Kel ly is chai ring a membersh ip  committee to take a look at our membersh ip  levels and perhaps 
restructure. If you are interested in participating on that committee , please contact h im  at ndca. sec. tres@gmai l . com. 

Have a g reat day ! 
i l ly Goodman 

inistrative Manager 
. 934 .2682 

rnfo@ndca.net 

2019 Membership Benefits & Application.pdf 
280K 

Becky Perry-Domres <h idrbecky@gmai l .com> 
To: "Dr. Jake Schmi tz" <drjakedc4u@gmai l .com> 

[Quoted text hidden] 
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2019 Membership Benefits & Application.pdf 
280K 

Thu, Jan 17 , 2019 at 10:30 AM 
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Phone : (70 1 )  2 1 3 -0476 · Fax : (70 1 )  3 5 2 - 2 2 5 8  · Emai l :  contact@ndsbce . org · Web : www .ndsbce . org 

North Dakota State Board of Chi ropractic Examiners Report 2018 

The m iss ion  of the N DSBCE is to protect the pub l ic 's hea lth ,  welfa re and  safety t h rough effect ive 

l icensu re, i nvest igat i on  and  enforcement of the  properly u pdated statutes and  ru les govern ing the 

pract i ce of c h i ropra ct i c  to ensure a sta nda rd of com petent and  eth ica l pract ice i n  a l l  a reas of the 

profess io n .  

The  Boa rd he l d  t he i r  e lect ion o f  office rs a t  the  J a nua ry 2018  meet i ng .  Cu rrent officers a re :  P res ident, 

Dr. M ichae l  Rem m ick  (term ends 8/3 1/2022 ) ;  Vice P res ident, Dr. Steven Pederson (8/3 1/2020); 

Secreta ry/Treasu re r, D r. Er ic  F roeh l i ng (8/3 1/2019) ;  othe r  mem bers of the board a re Dr. Dion F icek 

(8/3 1/2018)  a nd  Dr. Kent Yohe (8/3 1/2021) .  

The N DSBCE he l d  3 i n  person boa rd meeti ngs and  11  conference ca l l  meeti ngs i n  2017 .  Boa rd meet ing 

i nformat ion can  be found  on the board's webs ite : www.ndsbce .o rg. 

In 2017 ,  18 forma l  com pla ints were rece ived from i nsu ra nce com pan ies, consumers, and  other  

ch i ropractors .  13 of  t hose comp la i nts were for  advert i s i ng v io lat ions of  ou r  cu rrent P ract ice Act and 

Ad m i n istrat ive Ru les .  

A l l  l i ce nsees rece ived an emai l  o r  not ice from the  Boa rd i n  Febru a ry concern ing the need for review a nd 

eva l u at ion  of t he i r  webs ites and  socia l med ia post i ngs. Concerns i nc l u de, but not l im ited to, giveaways, 

d u a l  fee promot ions ,  a dvert i s i ng ca m pa igns, i n ducements, or any other  act iv ity that may be cons idered 

in v io lat ion of ou r  Laws and/or Adm i n istrative Ru les .  Remem ber, as l icense ho lders, you a re respons ib le  

for a l l  content i n  a l l  of you r  profess iona l  act iv it ies whether  t h is act ivity is  performed by you rse lf, 

corporat ions  whom you contract with, or othe r  ent it ies you may use for you r profess iona l  presence 

whethe r  i n  h a rd copy o r  soc ia l  med i a .  

Th is  boa rd does n ot a ct ively pu rsue v io lat ions of  the  l icense ho lders .  H owever, fo l lowing a forma l  

s igned com p la i nt, due p rocess requ i res the board to ask for  a response to the com pl a i nt by the  

l icensee(s )  a n d  then ,  i n  review of  the com pla i nt and  response, determ i ne  i f  there has been  a v io lat ion of 

t he  Laws a nd/or Ad m i n istrat ive Ru les .  There has  been concern voiced that on ly c h i ropractors were 

fi l i ng  these com p l a i nts .  Add it iona l ly, the o lder l icense ho lders must be the  i nd iv id u a ls fi l i ng these 

com p l a i nts aga i nst the younger/newer practit ioners .  Th is is not and has  not been the case. 

The Boa rd w i l l  cont i n ue  to ut i l ize mass ema i ls fo r notificat ions, news, and rem i nders to the l icensees 

t h roughout t he  yea r. Ou r  i ntent ion is not to spam or i n undate you with t rivi a l  i nfo rmat ion .  We i ntend 

to keep these i tems to frequent ly asked quest ions  and im portant not ice or  dead l i ne rem inders .  

The  law for Cert if ied Ch i ropract ic C l i n i ca l  Assista nts (CCCA) took effect on  August 1 ,  2017 .  A s  with a l l  

new th i ngs, t he re has  been  confus ion ,  quest ions, and  frustrat i on .  We have done ou r  best to  a nswer and  

c l a r ify the  i nformat ion fo r a l l .  There has a lso been  exce l lent com p l i ance . We tha n k  you  for you r due 

d i l igence i n  m a king  s u re you r offices a re properly ce rtify ing you r staff. 
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f5 · '-f 



The Boa rd wou ld  l i ke to thank  you for you r  comp l i a nce of Sect ion 10-30-13 of the N D  Cent u ry Code 

perta i n i ng to P rofess iona l  Organ izat ions-An nua l  Reports-Renewals  that we made you aware of i n  2017 

i n  va r ious n ot ices .  P rov id ing  a copy of you r  a n nu a l  report to the Boa rd is an ongoing requ i rement .  

These reports a re on  fi le  i n  the boa rd office and  have not and wi l l  not be reviewed by boa rd members .  

Any request of th is i nformat ion w i l l  be made to the boa rd office and appropr iate ly sha red, when 

proper ly req uested . 

L isa B l a ncha rd cont i n ues i n  the Execut ive D i rector's pos it ion  for the Board .  She  was i nstru menta l i n  the  

deve lopment and cont i nued u pdat ing of  the Boa rd's website . For exam ple, as of  M a rch  1, 2018, we 

now req u i re a l l  l i ce nse app l ica nts to su ccessfu l ly com plete the on l i ne  J u r isprudence Exa m inat ion .  

Add it i ona l ly, the  com plet ion of  th is exam inat ion ,  by a l i censee fo l lowing a fo rma l  o r  i nform a l  sanct ion 

i ssued to them by the  Board, has been and wi l l  cont i nue  to be a cons istent requ i rement .  

The Boa rd cont i n ues to be act ive on a nat iona l  leve l with part i c ipat ion i n  regu latory and l i cens i ng 

act iv it ies .  We pa rt i c i pate i n  the deve lopment of the pract i ca l  Pa rt IV Nat iona l  Boa rd exam i nat ion i n  

add it ion  to the  a d m i n ister ing o f  that s ame exam a t  d ifferent test i ng s ites . We cont i nue  to se rve a s  

de legates to the  Federat ion o f  Ch i ropract ic  L i cens i ng Boa rds and  the N at iona l Boa rd of  Ch i ropract ic 

Exa m ine rs a n d  h ave i n put on regu latory po l i cy as  wel l  as educat iona l  t ra i n i ng requ i red for Board act ivity 

and  respons i b i l it ies .  The educat ion ga ined is va l u ab le i n  understa nd i ng the regu latory cha l l enges other 

states a re exper ienc i ng .  

The re a re cu rrent ly 436 act ive l icense ho lders and  57 inact ive l icense ho lders i n  our  state . Add it iona l ly, 

t he re a re 76 Cert if ied Ch i ropract ic C l i n ica l Ass ista nts with a n  add i t iona l  33 pend i ng a pp l icants .  

We encou rage you to we lcome and get to know the  fo l lowing new doctors ( s i nce Apr i l  2017)  to our 

state :  

Dr .  R i ley Kno l l  

Dr .  K im be rly Weber 

D r. Benj am i n  Wh itten  

Dr .  M atthew Chu ppe 

Dr .  Thomas Ke l l e r  

Dr .  Chase E nget 

Dr. Kendra Styron 

Dr .  G regory Lowen be rg 

Dr .  Ch ristopher  P i sche l  

Dr .  Amy Wolf  

Dr .  M ichae l  Koehn  

Respectfu l ly s ubm itted, 

Dr. J a red Mann  

D r .  N ev i l l e  La mbou rne 

Dr .  Kent M a ier  

Dr .  T imothy Corr igan 

Dr .  Cu rt i s  Wei nste in  

Dr .  Robert K le i nfe ld  

Dr . Chante l  Pokorny 

Dr .  Joseph G rausgru ber 

Dr .  B ritta ny Dusek 

Dr .  Amanda Johnson 

Dr .  M ichae l  A .  Rem m ick, P res ident N DSBCE 

Dr. Catr ina  L indvig 

Dr .  Cameron  Schroeder 

Dr .  Cha rlsey Johnson 

Dr .  J am ison E ng lund 

Dr .  Kr ista l  Weinste i n  

D r. J e nna Smaby 

Dr .  Matthew G i l bertson  

Dr .  B rett Weg le itner 

D r. A l l i son K lug 

D r. Kev in  Russeau 
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Ch i ropract ic Assoc iat i o n  

2019 Membersh ip  Dues 

Membership is active January 1, 2019- December 31, 2019 

Fu l l  Dues 

1 .  N EW M E M BER  
Recent graduate & starting first full year of licensure in ND. 
Complimentary annual dues, CE seminars and annual banquet ticket (1). 

2 .  SECO N D  YEAR M E M BER - complimentary CE seminars 

3 .  TH I RD YEAR M EM BER  

4 .  F U LL M E M BER 

5 .  MARR I E D  M E M BER  

5 .  RETI R ED  M EM BER  

6 .  STU DENT M EM BER  - En ro l led i n  Ch i ropract ic  Co l l ege . 

7 .  HONORARY L I F E  M EM BER 

$ 0  

$ 200 

$ 400 

$ 600 

$ 900 

$ 100 

$ 0  

$ 0  

D iscou nted * 

$ 0  

$ 190 

$ 380 

$ 570 

$ 855 

$ 95 

$ 0  

$ 0  

*A 5% d iscount on a l l  dues received by the Secretary/Treasurer and paid i n  fu l l  by December 

31, 2018. 

Please Note: Our By-Laws state that membership fees are due January 1, and become delinquent 
February 1. In addition, for income tax year 2019, 13% of your NDCA dues are not allowable as a tax 
deductible business expense, as this percentage of your dues will go towards political expenses in 2019. 

Quest ions a bout dues amount, members h i p  status or a payment p la n ?  

Contact N DCA Secreta ry/Treasu rer :  D r . M i ke Kel ly: ndca .sec . t res@gma i l . com 

P5 , � 
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North Da kota Publ ic  Meeting 
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Maio Menu 

View Meeting 

Meeting Details 

Entity: 

Govern ing Body: 

Meeting Title:  

N D  State Boa rd of Ch i ropractic Exa m i ne rs 

N D  State Boa rd of Ch i ropract ic Exa m i ners 

N D  Ch i ropractic Association  Leg is lative Socia l  

Meeting Date and Time:  1/24/20 19 5 : 30 PM 

Meeting Type: Reg u la r  

Agenda 

The mem bers and  staff of the N D  Boa rd of Ch i ropractic Exam iners are i nv ited to attend 
the Leg i s lat ive Socia l  hosted by the North  Da kota Ch i ropractic Associat ion (N DCA) on  
Th u rsday, J a n u a ry 24 ,  2019 .  Th i s  is a soc ia l  gather ing and  not  a n  offic ia l  meeting . 
However, there is the potent ia l  for a quorum of the boa rd mem bers to attend and  for 
questions or bus i ness of the boa rd to be d i scussed , we a re posti ng as a meeting . 
The attenda nce of the boa rd mem bers is not req u i red and therefore a q uo ru m  may not 
occur. 
Th is is a n  i n v ited event hosted by the NDCA a nd therefore we request that a ny p u b l ic 
i nterested i n  the event contact the Ad m i n istrative Manager of the N DCA for fu rther 
i nformation .  (70 1 )  934-2682 o r  i nfo@ndca . net 

Attachments 

No attach m ents fou nd . 

This meeting was posted o n :  1/ 16/20 19 1 :  14 PM 

Th is meeti ng was lasted ed ited on: 1/ 16/20 19 1 : 25 PM 

11111 
Contact Us Disclaimer Privacy Policy 

Meeting Location 

Terra Nomad 
5 14 E Ma in  Ave . 
B ismarck, N D  5850 1 

Map th i s !  

Contact Information 

Lisa B lanchard 
contact@ndsbce . o rg 
7 0 1 - 2 1 3 -0476 

Options 

Add Th is Meet i ng to Ca lendar 

D i splay as Pri nter Friend ly 

Su bscribe to Ema i l  Notifications 

Security Pol icy Accessibi l ity 

In We use Secu re Sockets Layer (SSL) encrypt ion tech nology to e nsu re you r i nformation is secu re and protected . 

,::i W i l l  open a new w i ndow ( pop- u p ) . 

W3C WAI AA, CSS, XHTM L Compl iant I Copyright 2012 .  Al l  Rights Reserved . The State of North Dakota . 
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N D  Ch i ropract ic  Association 
Proposed amendments for HB 1279 

Page 1, l ine 10, remove "." and insert immed iately thereafter "except that each fifth yea r  there 
must be  two n ew board members appoi nted, one of whom is  a Doctor of Ch i ropracti c  and the  
other  a certifi ed  ch i ropractic c l in ica l  assistant and  two yea rs l ater two new board members 
must be  appoi nted, one of whom i s  a doctor of ch i ropract ic, and  one  of whom is  a consumer 
member. No member  may serve for more than two (2) consecutive five (5) yea r  terms .  If a 
member  of the  board is absent from two consecutive regu l a r  meeti ngs, the board may decl a re 
a vacancy to exist . A l l"  

Renu m ber accord ingly 

43-06-04. Board of chiropractic examiners - Members - Term of office. 
Each m ember  of the  board sha l l  qua l ify by tak ing the oath of office requ i red of civi l officers a nd  
sha l l  ho ld  office for a term of  five yea rs and u nt i l  t he  member's successor i s  a ppoi nted and  
qua l ifie d .  The  terms o f  office o f  t he  members o f  t he  boa rd must be so a rranged that one term 
and  on ly one exp i res on  the th i rty-fi rst day of August of each yea r� except tha t  each  fifth yea r  
t he re m u s t b e  two n ew boa rd members appo i nted, one  o f  whom i s  a Docto r  o f  Ch i ropract i c  
and the  othe r  a cert i fi ed c h i ropract i c c l i n i ca l a s s i st an t  and two yea rs l ater  two new boa rd 
members m u st be appo i n ted, one  of  whom i s  a doctor of ch i ropract i c, a nd  one  of whom i s  a 
con s ume r  membe r . No  membe r  m ay serve for more t h an  two (2) con secut ive five (5) yea r  
t e rms  I f  a membe r  o f  the  boa rd 1 s a bsen t from two consecut ive regu l a r  mee t i ngs, t he  boa rd 
m ay dec l a re  a va c ancy to ex i st . A l l  vacancies on the board must be  fi l l ed by appo intment by the 
governor .  'A'hen a vacancy occurs on the board by expiration of the term, death, or resignation 
of a member, or removal for other cause, the North Dakota chiropractic association shall 
nominate, by procedure adopted in the bylaws of said association, to the governor three 
qualified persons for each 11acancy. The governor shall appoint a member to fill the vacancy on 
the board from the three nominees. 

Add Sect ion 2 

SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT. Section 43-46-03 of the  North Dakota Centu ry code is amended and  
reenacted as  fo l lows : 

S t r i ke  t h rough  43 -06-03 

43-06-03. State board of chiropractic examiners - Members - Appointment - Qua l ifications. 
The state board of chiropractic examiners shall consist of fii.•e members appointed by the 
governor. f:ach person appointed must: 

1. Ha1a'e a license to practice chiropractic in �Jorth Dakota. 
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2. Have been a resident of this state and have practiced chiropractic in this state for at 
least five consecutive years immediately before appointment to the board . 
3. Remain a resident of this state and continue in active practice in this state during the 
term of office. 

a nd  rep l ace with the fo l lowing 

43-06-03 . State board of chi ropractic examiners - Members - Appointment - Qual ifications. 
The state boa rd of ch i ropractic examiners sha l l  consist of seven members appoi nted by the 
governor. The membersh ip of the board must i ncl ude  five (5) Doctors of Ch i ropract ic members, 
one  (1) Cert ifi ed  Ch i ropractic C l in ica l Assistant (CCCA) member  and  one consumer  member. 

1 .  Each Doctor  of Ch i ropractic member appo inted to the board must : 
a .  H ave a l i cense to practice ch i ropract ic i n  North Dakota . 
b .  H ave been a resident of th is  state and  have practiced ch i ropract ic i n  th is  state for at 
least five consecutive yea rs immediate ly before appointment to the board .  
c .  Rem a i n  a res ident o f  t h i s  state and  conti nue  i n  active practice i n  t h i s  state d u ring the 
term of office .  
d .  Be a l icensee i n  good sta nd i ng and must not be the subject investigation by the board 
for l aws o r  ru les  vio lat ions under  th i s  chapter. 

2 .  An i nd ivi d u a l  m ay not be appoi nted as a CCCA member  of the boa rd u n l ess that i nd ivid ua l :  
a .  I s  a l i censed and  registered certified ch i ropractic c l i n ica l  ass istant i n  accorda nce with 
chapter 43-06-16. 1: and  
b .  I s  act ive ly engaged in  the  practice of  certifi ed c l i n i ca l  ass istant i n  th i s  state a t  least 
five yea rs i m m ed iately preced ing the certified c l i n i ca l  ass istant's appoi ntment .  

3 .  An i nd ivi d u a l  m ay not be appoi nted as the  consu mer mem ber of the board u n l ess that 
i nd ivid u a l :  

a .  h a s  been  a resident o f  North Dakota for five yea rs immed iate ly preced ing 
appo intment; 
b .  H a s  n o  persona l  or fam i ly fi n anci a l  re l at ionsh ip with the ch i ropracti c  profession; and  
c .  I s  not a Doctor of  Ch i ropractic, a certifi ed c l i n ica l ch i ropract ic ass istant, a l i censed 
hea lthca re professiona l, or a spouse of an i nd ividua l  engaged in a ny of those 
occupat ions .  

4. The certified  c l i n ica l a ssista nt a nd consumer  member of the board sha l l  exercise fu l l  voti ng 
privi l eges i n  a l l  a reas  except the certified cl i n ica l ass istant may not pa rticipate i n  the c l i n ica l 
exam i n at ion of the  ch i ropractor for l icensu re and  the consumer  member  may not pa rt ic ipate i n  
t he  c l i n i ca l  exa m inat ion o f  ch i ropractors o r  certified ch i ropract ic c l i n i ca l  assista nts for l i censu re. 
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Dr. Jake Schmitz 
4233 44th Avenue South, Fargo, N D  58104 
701-770-0185 
drjakedc4u@gmail .com 

• L icensed Ch i ropractor i n  N D  ( and  previously NC)  

• Owner of Freedo m  Ch i ropract ic Hea lth Center i n  

Fa rgo 

• Owner  of Freedom Ch i ropract ic Heath Center i n  

G r a nd  Forks 

• Lifet ime  Member  of the  I nternat iona l  

Ch i ropract ic Assoc iat ion 

• Founder  a nd  pres i dent of the Associat ion of 

We l l ness Ch i ropractors 

• Bus iness co-owner  of severa l ent it ies i n  N D  

i nvolv ing l and ,  m ine ra ls, water  a n d  rea l  estate 

• VP of PTA at Kennedy E lementary School i n  

Fa rgo, ND  

• Went to school  at Wi l l iston State Co l l ege, 

D ick inson State U n ive rsity, Northwestern Hea lth 

Sc iences U n iversity and cu rrent ly fi n ish ing 

Masters at U n iversity of Western States 

• Marr ied with 2 ch i l d ren  

Chairman Weisz, representatives of the Human Services Committee, 

Hello and thank you for the opportunity to speak to you today. My name is Dr. Jake Schmitz and I am 

here today representing myself as a licensed chiropractor in the state of North Dakota ( N D) .  I have been 

a practic ing chiropractor in Fargo for what will be 7 years next week. 

I support the proposed bill �ecause it will grant equal representation for all chiropractors 

under the law. Currently N�04 only allows nominations to occur through the North Dakota 

Chiropractic Association ( NDCA) .  Of these nominations, a selection is made to the North Dakota State 

Board of Chiropractic Examiners ( N DSBCE ) .  A state board which is responsible for governing all licensed 

chiropractors in North Dakota, not just members of the N DCA. 

A private association should not be able to nominate applicants to serve on a state board. Just as an 

association membership does not make one chiropractor more qualif ied than another to serve on a 

state board. However, in this state that exact precedence has been set (see attached 2017 N DCA bylaws 

and the 2018 revisions ) .  

All l icensed chiropractors should have an equal opportunity .  I t  should come down to leadership skills 

and if a candidate can govern equally and fairly. Ult imately, it should be the governor's choice to choose 

among all applicants, not just from a select few nominees voted on by only one organi zation. 
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A ch iropractor does not need to be i n  or a nominee of any association to get a degree, become l icensed, ffl · 2-
open a c l i n i c, or treat patients; yet i n  order for the governor to see their app l i cat ion, they have to be 

nomi nated by a private association, which does not represent al l ch iropractors i n  our state. 

A l l  act ive ly l i censed professionals are equal based on their establ ished degree and l i cense. Bei ng a 

member, non-member, or nomi nee of an associat ion shou ld be irrelevant when it comes to apply ing for 

a posit ion on the state board. I t  should not come down to a popular vote with i n  one organ izat ion, 

especial l y  for a posit ion which is supposed to oversee al l ch iropractors in the state. 

To reference other doctorate level professional state boards i n  N D :  

• For the N D  Board of Medic i ne, the N D  Dental Board, the N D  State Board of Optometry, ND 

Board of I ntegrative Healthcare, ND  Board of P hysical Therapy and the  N D  Board of P harmacy, 

there is no mention of or requ irement to be nominated by an association i n  order to apply or 

serve on its correspondi ng state board. I n  fact, al l of these boards have outside representation 

to keep it more objective. 

• A l l  of these state board members regulat ing doctorate level l icensed professionals i n  N D, were 

al l are appoi nted by the governor without a nomi nation process. 

H B  1279 does not take away the N DCA's or its members' r ights to app ly and ult imately serve on the 

state board; i t  gives that r ight equal ly to al l ND ch iropractors by removing the N DCA from the selection 

process. I support H B  1279 and I hope you wi l l  as wel l .  

Thank you for your t ime. I greatly appreciate the opportun i ty to speak here today. I wi l l  welcome any 

questions you may have. 

Maximum bless ings, 

Dr. Jake Schmitz 



The current version of the NDCA By-Laws contains the following section related to the ND 

State Board of Chiropractic Examiners under Article X Miscellaneous Provisions, Section 6 .  

State Board of Examiners . 

Section 6. State Board of Examiners 

Candidates for appointment to the State Board of Chiropractic Examiners shall be selected 

during the business session of the Corporation at its annual Convention. All candidates shall be a 

member of the NDCA. Secret ballots shall be cast in three separate elections. The three (3) 

doctors elected with the most votes in each election shall have their name submitted in 

alphabetical order, to the Governor of North Dakota. Each of the five districts of the State shall 

be considered in rotation and no D.C.  may serve for more than two (2) consecutive five (5) year 

terms. 

The NDCA is proposing to change (changes in italics) this section of the By-Laws to read as 

follows : 

Section 6. State Board of Examiners 

Candidates for appointment to the State Board of Chiropractic Examiners shall be selected 

during a public meeting of chiropractors licensed in the State of North Dakota held just prior to 

the business session of the Corporation at its annual Convention. All candidates must meet 

qualifications outlined in North Dakota Century Code Section 43-06-03 .  Secret ballots shall be 

cast in three separate elections. The three (3) doctors elected with the most votes in each election 

shall have their name submitted in alphabetical order, to the Governor of North Dakota. Each of 

the five districts of the State shall be considered in rotation and no D.C.  may serve for more than 

two (2) consecutive five (5) year terms. 
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Representative Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee, my name is Dr. Eric 
Seamands. I am a local chiropractor, Southwest District Director for the North Dakota Chiropractic 
Association, and an employee of Sanford Health in Bismarck. 

I am here today to discuss House Bi 1 1279 regarding the selection process for the North Dakota 
Chiropractic Board of Examiners. I removes the following portion from the selection process: 
"When a vacancy occurs on the board by expiration of the term, death, or resignation of a member, or 
removal for other cause, the North Dakota chiropractic association shall nominate, by procedure 
adopted in the bylaws of said association, to the governor three qualified persons for each vacancy. The 
governor shall appoint a member to fill the vacancy on the board from the three nominees." 

The by-laws of our association and the current process already allows for every chiropractor in North 
Dakota to be eligible and vote for the names that are submitted to the governor and is outlined below: 

� "Section 6 .  State Board of Examiners Candidates for appointment to the State Board of Chiropractic 
Examiners shall be selected during a public meeting of chiropractors licensed in the State of North 
Dakota held just prior the business session of the Corporation at its annual Convention. All candidates 
must meet qualifications outlined in North Dakota Century Code Section 43-06-03 . Secret ballots shall 
be cast in three separate elections. The three (3 )  doctors elected with the most votes in each election 
shall have their name submitted in alphabetical order, to the Governor of North Dakota. Each of the five 
districts of the State shall be considered in rotation and no D .C .  may serve for more than two (2 )  ;K. consecutive five (5 )  year terms. "  

• Adopting Bill 1279 eliminates a layer of protection for the people of North Dakota, by removing 
a process that helps ensure that a qualified candidate is selected by the Governor of North 
Dakota. 

• The bill would put the onus entirely on the Governor and possibly create a process influenced by 
competing forces, personal affiliations, or personal agenda items that do not align with the 
interests of protecting the public. 

• The bill eliminates the current term limits for serving as a member of the Board of Examiners 
and only addresses term length. 

• The bill does not address district distribution of current Board of Examiner members, which 
serves to limit risk of quorum outside public meetings. 

With these reasons in mind, I would ask that the committee give a DO NOT PASS recommendation to 
House Bill 1279 and I would stand for any questions. 
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H . B . 1279 

H U MAN SERV ICES COM M ITTEE 

TESTI MONY OF  NORTH DAKOTA STATE BOARD OF  CH I ROPRACT IC EXAM I N ERS 

Cha i rman  We i sz, members of the com m ittee, I am  Dr. E r i c  F roeh l i ng, member of 

the  North  Da kota Boa rd of Ch i ropractic  Exam i ners .  I was a ppo i nted by Governor 

Da l rymp l e  to the  Boa rd 4 yea rs ago .  I am here today to exp l a i n  why the  Boa rd is  

oppos i ng b i l l  1279 .  

Cu rrent ly, the  No rth  Da kota Ch i ropractic Assoc iation 's po l i cy fo r nom i n ati ng 

i nd iv i d u a l s  u nde r  the  process i n  Centu ry Code i nc l u des a l i m itation  on  the  n umber  

of  terms an i n d iv i d u a l  may se rve; a geograph i c  rotationa l  system for boa rd 

member  a p po i ntments; a nd  a l im ited q u a ntity of app l i ca nts for the  vaca ncy. The 

Boa rd a n d  the p ub l i c  benefit from those po l i c ies by a l l owi ng a d ive rse 

rep resentation on  the  Boa rd .  

We a re c h a rged with the protection of t h e  pub l i c  i n  th i s  state a nd  t h e  method of 

a ppo intment that is cu rrent ly i n  p lace ass u res that equa l  rep resentation  

th roughout the  e nti re state constitutes the Boa rd ,  as  opposed to  concentration of 

rep resentation  from one particu l a r  town .  

The  Centu ry Code  does not i nc l ude term l im its, therefore, a boa rd member  cou l d  

be  a ppo i nted and  then  re-a ppo i nted m u ltip le  times depend i ng on  the  po l itica l 



c l imate, whereas  the Assoc i ation 1s po l i cy for nomi nati ng i n d iv i d u a l s p rov ides 

protection  aga i nst that .  

The Boa rd of Exam i ne rs ha s  great concerns over a n  u n l im ited n u m be r  of 

ch i rop ra ctors s ubm itti ng the i r  n a mes to the Governor fo r a ppo i ntment to the 

Boa rd .  The vetti ng p rocess wou l d  be cumbersome and make a time l y  se l ection  

d ifficu lt .  The cur rent method of  se l ecti ng the 3 nom i nees i s  open  to  a l l  l i cense 

ho lde rs that meet the  req u i rements esta b l i shed i n  43-06-03 .  Th i s  means  a l l  

l i cense ho l de rs, not so le ly  members of the trade assoc iati o n .  For t he  l a st severa l 

decades, th i s  vetting p rocess has  been effic ient and  effective a n d  h a s  se rved 

citi zens of No rth  Da kota we l l  by p rovi d i ng fo r efficient a ppo i ntment to vaca nt 

pos itions .  

The North  Da kota Boa rd of  Ch i rop racti c Exam i ners opposes House B i l l  1279 .  That 
• 

conc l udes my testimony a n d  I wou l d  stand fo r a ny question s .  

• 



January 2 1 , 20 1 9  

Del ivered E lectron ica l ly 

The Honorab le Thomas Beadle 
North Dakota House of Representatives 
4266 Russet Avenue South 
Fargo ,  ND 58 1 04-8429 

RE : � 

Dear Representative Beadle :  

The I nternationa l  Ch i ropractors Association has reviewed HB  1 279,  wh ich amends section 43-
06-04 of the North Dakota Century Code as it re lates to the appointment of members to the 
Board of Ch i ropractic Examiners. At present nominations are on ly received through the North 
Dakota Ch i ropractic Association .  (N DCA) . 

The I nternationa l  Ch i ropractors Association ( ICA) is the world's o ldest, continua l ly operating 
i nternat ional ch i ropractic professional organ ization representing practitioners ,  students, 
ch i ropractic assistants, educators , and lay persons world-wide .  The ICA was founded i n  1 926 in 
Davenport ,  I owa by Dr .  B. J. Palmer. We are dedicated to the growth and development of the 
ch i ropractic profession based on Dr. Palmer's commitment to professional and c l in ical 
exce l lence and ,  the fund�mental pri nciple of ch i ropractic as a un iq ue,  separate , d istinct ,  and 
d rug less health care profession . 

The ICA is i nformed that of the 493 l icensed chi ropractors i n  the state , on ly 226 ( less than fifty 
percent) have chosen to jo in the NDCA. We bel ieve that a l l  ch i ropractors i n  North Dakota 
shou ld have the opportun ity to submit thei r  recommendations to the Governor for consideration . 
Mak ing the changes to the nomination process increases the opportun ity for part icipation in  the 
state Board of Ch i ropractic Examiners by a broader spectrum of ch i ropractors .  Therefore ,  we 
are p leased to endorse HB  1 279. 

If we can be of fu rther assistance,  please do not hesitate to contact the ICA. 

S incerely, 

-41111�i. fu.r./1': 
George B. Curry, DC, F ICA 
President 

Cc: Michael N icola i ,  DC, ICA Representative for North Dakota 

www.ch i ropractic.org 



HB 1279 
Senate Human  Services Comm ittee 

Test imony from Rep .  Thomas Bead l e  
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Good Morn ing  Cha i rman Lee and mem bers of the Senate Human  Services Com m ittee .  Fo r the reco rd, 

my name is  Thomas  Bead le, State Representat ive from Dist rict 27 in Fa rgo . 

HB  1279 came to me at the req uest of a const ituent who has  a prom inent  bus i ness i n  my d istrict. What 

th is  b i l l  attem pts to do i s  adjust the nom i nat ion structu re fo r membersh i p  to the Boa rd of Ch i ropract ic 

Exam i ne rs so that one specific associat ion isn 't so le ly respons ib le  fo r putt ing the mem bers fo rwa rd to 

the Governor  fo r de l i be rat ion .  As introd uced, th is b i l l  s imp ly removed l a nguage in  43-06-04 that 

specif ied that a vaca ncy was fi l l ed by nominat ion by the ND Ch i rop ract ic Assoc iat ion to the Gove rnor .  

There a re many l icensed ch i ropractors i n  our state who a re not membe rs of th is a ssociat ion, some of 

whom have sta rted a nd a re growing a sepa rate associat ion,  a nd  even more who wou l d  not be deemed 

act ive and i nvo lved mem bers of the ND Ch i rop ractic Associat ion .  As a resu lt, many fee l  that re ly ing on  

nominat ion from the a ssociat ion l im its the ab i l ity for some l icensed profess iona l s  to  serve on  th i s  boa rd .  

The House H u m a n  Serv ices, upon receiv ing test imony a n d  p lenty o f  feedback from members o f  the 

Associat ion and the boa rd ,  dec ided that there is i ndeed an  issue that ca n be so lved, but made some 

substa nt ia l cha nges to the o rigi na l  b i l l .  The b i l l  as  you see before you, and a s  pa ssed by a 91-0 vote in  

the House does a few th i ngs. I t  keeps the cha nge that nom inat ions do not just come from the 

associat ion .  Add it iona l ly, it expa nds the boa rd mem bersh ip  from 5 to 7 members, add i ng a ce rtified 

ch i ropract ic c l i n ica l a ss ista nt and  a consumer  member  to the boa rd . La nguage is added to specify the 

requ i rements fo r these two members i n  subsect ions 3 t h rough 6 of Sect ion 1 .  Add it iona l ly, the exist ing 

l a nguage for the qu a l ificat ions for the l icensed ch i ropracto rs adds i n  l a nguage into su bsect ion 2 (d )  that 

says that a n  i nd ivid u a l  must be in  good sta nd ing and not under i nvestigat io n .  Th is  l a nguage m ight need 

to be c la rified,  a s  if an i nvestigat ion is brought to an exist ing boa rd mem ber, th is l a nguage m ight render  

that seat  now vaca nt .  Sect ion 2 of th i s  b i l l  c l a rifies the term length and  a ppo intment structu re fo r the 

boa rd mem bers .  

I be l ieve that th i s  cha nge is wa rra nted a nd ca n benefit the ch i rop ract ic a ssociat ion .  There a re some 

l icensees who wi l l  be testifying after me that ca n exp la in  these cha nges and the need fo r them in  m uch 

more deta i l  and better exp la in  the rationa l e  fo r the cha nge . 

I am happy to an swer a ny q uest ions the comm ittee may have .  



• 
Dr, Jake Schmitz 
4233 44th Avenue South, Fargo, ND 58104 
701-770-0185 
drjakedc4u@gmai l ,com 

• L icensed Ch i ropractor i n  N D  (and previous ly NC) 

• Owner of Freedom Ch i ropractic Hea lth Center i n  

Fa rgo 

• Owner of Freedom Ch i ropract ic Heath Center i n  

G rand  Forks 

• Lifet ime Member of the I nternat iona l  

Ch i ropractic Associat ion 

• Founder  and president of the Associat ion of 

We l l ness Chi ropractors 
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• Bus iness co-owner of severa l ent it ies i n  N D  

i nvo lv ing l and ,  m ine ra ls, water a n d  rea l  estate 

• VP of PTA at Kennedy E lementary School i n  

Fargo, ND  

• Went to school  at Wi l l iston State Co l l ege, 

D ick inson State Un iversity, Northwestern Hea lth 

Sc iences U n iversity and cu rrently fi n ish ing 

Masters at U n iversity of Western States 

• Married with 2 ch i l d ren  

Chai rman Lee, representatives of the H uman Services Committee, 

Hel lo and thank you for the opportun ity to speak to you today, My name is Dr .  Jake Schmitz and I am 

here today representi ng myself as a l icensed chi ropractor i n  the state of North Dakota ( N D} .  I have been 

a practic i ng chi ropractor i n  Fargo for j ust over 7 years . 

I support the proposed bi l l  H B  1279, because it wi l l  grant equal representation for al l chi ropractors 

under the law. Currently N DCC 43-06-04 on ly al lows nominations to occur  through the North Dakota 

Chi ropract ic Association ( NDCA} , Of these nominations, a select ion is made to the North Dakota State 

Board of Chi ropract ic Exami ners ( NDSBCE } .  A state board which is responsible for govern i ng al l l icensed 

chi ropractors in North Dakota, not just members of the N DCA. 

The House Human Services Committee made amendments to i nc l ude other considerations for this bi l l  as 

the need for change was recognized. The amendments addressed fu rther needs such as addi ng outside 

representation onto the board and incl udi ng a CCCA member (chi ropractic assistant } .  However, there 

are a few adaptat ions to consider withi n these amendments. 

As amended, the CCCA member needs to have been cert if ied for a mi n imum of 5 years (43-06-03 :3b) . 

CCCAs are not career positions (typical ly) with high tu rnover, so fi nding a person who qual if ies is goi ng 

to be a chal lenge. Besides that, the CCCA cert if ication has only been i n  existence (taking effect} si nce 

August 2017, so the ear l iest appointment to reach 5 years wou ld not be possible u nt i l  2022 . Lowering 
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the requirements for appl icat ion wou ld ensure the posit ion gets f i l led. Furthermore, the l ikel ihood of a 

CCCA being able to fulf i l l  a ful l  5 year term may also be a chal lenge due to high turnover of that position. 

In addit ion, to reference other professional state boards in N D :  

For the N D  Board of Medicine, the ND  Dental Board, the N D  State Board of Optometry, N D  Board of 

Integrat ive Healthcare, N D  Board of Physical Therapy and the N D  Board of Pharmacy, there is no 

mention of or requirement to be nom inated by an associat ion in order to apply or serve on its 

corresponding state board. In fact, al l  of these boards have outside representat ion to keep it more 

object ive. The fol lowing boards have 2 or more publ ic members, which I would ask this committee to 

also consider adding a second publ ic member to the chiropract ic board. 

• State Board of Medicine (2 )  

• N D  State Board of Optometry ( 2 )  

• Board of Addiction Counsel ing Examiners ( 2 )  

• N D  Board of Cl inical Laboratory Pract ice ( 2 )  

• Board of Counselor Examiners ( 2 )  

• Health Counci l  ( S )  

• Board of Hearing Aid Special ists ( 2 )  

• Judicial Conduct Commission (4) 

• N D  Board of Social Work Examiners ( 2 )  

H B  1279 was created to promote equal i ty, diversity, growth and adaptat ion to our state board. The only 

way that happens is to make sure the best and most qual if ied candidates are given the opportunity to 

serve the state. With al l of the added amendments to H B  1279, the House thought it best to leave the 

appl ication process open to everyone in the state as opposed to carving the state into districts . It is the 

best for our chiropract ic profession to leave it open because it guarantees the most qual ified candidates 

can always apply. With districts as it current ly stands, a desired candidate may have to wait 10 years for 

another chance (as 5 year terms tend to be f i l led twice) . This is disheartening if the top, more qual if ied, 

candidates aren't l iving in the current district due to be f i l led. 
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Al l  l icensed chi ropractors should have an equal opportunity, across the board, each and every year. I t  

should come down to leadership ski l ls and if a candidate can govern equal ly and fai r ly .  U ltimately, it 

should be the governor's choice to choose among al l appl icants, no matter where they l ive. 

Thank you for your time. I greatly appreciate the opportunity to speak here today. I wi l l  welcome any 

questions you may have. 

Maximum blessings, 

Dr .  Jake Schmitz 
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H . B . 1279 

SENATE H U MAN  S ERV ICES COM M ITTEE  

TESTI MONY OF  NORTH DAKOTA STATE BOARD OF  CH I ROPRACTI C EXAM I N E RS 

Cha i rma n  Lee, mem bers of the com m ittee, I a m  L isa B l a ncha rd ,  Execut ive D i rector  

of  the  No rth  Da kota Boa rd of  Ch i rop ract i c  Exa m i ne rs .  The Boa rd h a s  voted 

u n a n i mous l y  to su pport House B i l l  1279 with the  p roposed a mend ment .  

I n  t he  House, the  Boa rd opposed t h i s  b i l l .  The ma i n  rea son fo r oppos i ng th i s  b i l l  

wa s beca use the Boa rd fe l t  that the  Boa rd a n d  the  p ub l i c  benefit from the  cu rre nt 

N D  Ch i rop ra ct i c  Associ at ion 's  nom i na t ion  po l i c ies  by a l l ow ing  a d ive rse 

rep resentat ion  on the Boa rd . We a re cha rged with t he  p rotect i on  of t he  p u b l i c i n  

t h i s  state a n d  the  method of a ppo i n tment  that  i s  cu rre nt ly  i n  p l a ce a ss u res tha t  

eq u a l  representa t ion  t h roughout the  en t i re state const i tutes t he  Boa rd, a s  opposed 

to concentrat i on  of rep resenta t ion  from one pa rt i cu l a r  town .  

G iven the  test imony a nd  respo nse from the  House com m ittee, however, t he  Boa rd 

fee l s  tha t  its concerns  ca n be a dd ressed with i n  the  st ruct u re of t he  p roposed 

Engrossed House B i l l  1279, wh ich a dd resses some of the com m ittee a nd pu b l i c' s  

con cerns  ove r the  cu rre nt nom i nat ion  p ract i ce .  

I h ave atta ched to my test imony a p roposed a mendment to H B  1279 .  As  you ca n 

see, it p rov i des fo r a n  add it ion on  page 1, l i ne 1 1, a nd req u i res t ha t  each  of t he  f ive 
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( 5 )  a ppo i nted docto rs of ch i rop ract i c  comes from a d i ffe rent a rea of the state . Th i s  

a l l ows a l l  port i ons  o f  the state to  be rep resented,  whethe r  ru ra l o r  more d ense l y  

popu l ated,  a s  each  port ion  of the  state ha s  d iffe rent i s sues  a nd pe rs pect ives t ha t  

p rov i de  fo r a d ive rse a pp roach to  matters befo re the  boa rd . 

The No rth  Da kota Boa rd of Ch i rop ra ct i c  Exa m i ne rs su pports eng rossed Hou se B i l l  

1279 wi th  t h e  p roposed amendment .  That  conc l udes m y  test imony a n d  I wou l d  

sta n d  fo r a ny quest i on s .  
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PROPOSED AM EN DMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE B I LL N O .  1 279 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 1 ,  after "ch i ropractic" i nsert ", as fo l lows : 
( 1 ) One doctor of ch i ropract ic practic i ng i n  Cass, Ransom, Rich land, o r  

Sargent county; 
(2) One doctor of ch i ropractic pract ic ing i n  Benson, Cava l ie r, G rand  Forks, 

Nelson, Pemb ina, Ramsey, Towner, Tra il, or Wa lsh county; 
(3) One doctor of ch i ropract ic practic i ng i n  Botti neau, Bu rke, D iv ide, McHen ry, 

McKenzie, McLean,  Mou ntra i l, P ierce, Renvi l le, Rolette, Sheridan,  Ward, 
Wel ls, or  Wi l l iams county; 

(4) One doctor of ch i ropract ic pract ic ing in Adams, B i l l i ngs, Bowman,  
Bu r le igh, Dunn ,  Emmons, Go lden Va l ley, G rant, Hetti nger, Mercer, 
Morton, O l iver, S ioux, S lope, or Sta rk county; and 

(5) One doctor of ch i ropract ic pract ic ing in Barnes, D ickey, Eddy, Foster, 
Griggs, Kidder, LaMoure, Logan, Mc I ntosh, Steele, o r  Stutsman county" 

Renumber accord i ng ly 
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Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee, my name is Kris Anderson . I am a 
chiropractor in Grand Forks, where I have practiced with my wife, who is also a chiropractor, for the last 
seven years. I n  September 2018, I began also seeing patients part-time at Valley Community Health 
Center in Larimore. I currently serve as the President-elect for the N D  Chiropractic Association ( N DCA), 
and it is in that role I am here today to speak to you in support of HB 1279, relating to membership of 
the state board of chiropractic examiners ( Licensing Board) ;  and to provide for application .  

The reason the Professional Association has taken an  active role regarding this particular bill is that the 
N DCA serves as the de facto nominating committee for the Licensing Board; presenting three names 
from which the Governor appoints a new member. We support H B  1279 because this bill codifies into 
law and expands upon a process currently established by our bylaws that we believe is important to 
maintain the function and integrity of the Licensing Board in its role to regulate the practice of 
chiropractic in N D . 

First, H B  1279 expands the Licensing Board to include a Certified Chiropractic Clinical Assistant (CCCA) 
member and a consumer member. This change is more consistent with the structure of other similar 
boards in N D  (e.g., Dental, Medical, Physical Therapy, and Pharmacy) .  Expanding membership and 
separating the Professional Association from the Licensing Board nominations also serves the direction 
of HCR 3026, passed during the 65th Assembly in 2017, to retain antitrust law immunity for Licensing 
Boards whose members also serve as market participants. 

Second, H B  1279 expands eligibility criteria for chiropractors and establishes eligibility criteria for the 
CCCA and consumer members that we believe reinforce the expectation that Licensing Board members 
are meant to serve the interests of the public. We believe the eligibility criteria require an applicant to 
disclose significant secondary personal interests, pecuniary or otherwise, that could reflect poorly on 
the Licensing Board or negatively impact the integrity of its work. 

Third, H B  1279 creates term limits for Licensing Board members, and fourth, H B  1279 establishes a 
mechanism whereby a vacancy occurs if a member is repeatedly absent. Lastly, we would encourage the 
Licensing Board to adopt the current district structure in their administrative rules. We understand it is 
not necessary to spell out the districts specifically in the law, but if this committee considers further 
amending H B  1279 to include districts, then the N DCA supports that effort. 

Madam Chairman and Committee Members, thank you for your time and consideration .  I hope you will 
agree with your colleagues from the House Human Services Committee who unanimously 
recommended DO PASS and then voted unanimously on the floor to pass H B  1279.  That concludes my 
prepared testimony, and I am happy to answer any questions . 
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